
Date: December 18, 2019 

Time: 6:00 p.m.  

Place:  Woodlake Community Center 

145 North Magnolia 

Woodlake, CA 93286 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. 

Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, including 

auxiliary aids, translation requests, or other accommodations, or to be able to access this 

agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact City Hall at 559-564-8055 at 

least 3 days prior to the meeting.      

The full agenda including staff reports and supporting materials are available at City Hall. 

I. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Planning 

Commission on items within its jurisdiction but not on this agenda.  NOTE:  Prior to 

action by the Planning Commission on any item on this agenda, the public may comment 

on that item.  Unscheduled comments may be limited to 3 minutes.  The City conducts 

business in the English language only.  If you need interpretative services, you will need 

to provide your own. 

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial by 

Planning Commission staff and will be approved by one motion if no member of the 

Planning Commission or public wishes to comment or ask questions.  Items pulled from 

the Calendar will be considered separately. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS

Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV.A)

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on December 4,

2019 (Pages 1-2)



V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Recommending Approval of Woodlake 
Reorganization Project to the Woodlake City Council – PUBLIC HEARING 
(Pages 3-16)

VI. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Information: Items from Staff

B. Information: Items from Planning Commissioners

C. Request from Planning Commissioners for Future Agenda Items

VII. ADJOURN

The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held on Wednesday January 15, 2020 

(if needed) at 6:00 p.m. at City Council Chambers located at 145 North Magnolia, Woodlake, 

CA 93286.  

Planning Commissioners: 

Chuck Mann - Vice Chair 

Johnny Varela 

Xavier Bocanegra  

Michael Navarro 



WOODLAKE PLANNING COMMISSION      MINUTES December 4, 2019 

PRESENT: Commissioners Varela, Mann, Navarro & Bocanegra 
OTHERS:   City Employees Waters and Zacarias 
ABSENT: 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 PM 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – None 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV.A) 

A. Action: Approval of Minutes from November 20, 2019.
ON A MOTION BY VARELA, SECOND BY NAVARRO IT WAS VOTED TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Annual Renewal of CUP’s with Conditions

PUBLIC HEARING

Community Services Director Waters reported the following: The City’s ordinances

indicate that CUPs must be renewed annually if the uses are to continue on a property.

The City is recommending an approval with conditions for the following permits:

1. CUP 17-011 Green Bean. Curb, gutters, sidewalks, streetlights on Naranjo (SR-216) and

Road 196 need to be installed to meet design standards established by the City. All

sidewalk areas and parking shall have ADA access and meet the design standards

established by the City in the Downtown Area. Construction and install landscaping and

irrigation in compliance with   City's design standards.

2. CUP  18-006 Cultivation, 18-007 Manufacturing and 18-006 Distribution 7 Points.

Curb, gutters, sidewalks, streetlights on Naranjo (SR-216) and Road 196 need to be

installed. Landscaping and Irrigation around site.

3. CUP 18-009 Premium Extracts. Complete the road construction on Lago Ave., 32’ of

pavement (2-12’ lanes and 8’ shoulder).

4. CUP 18-001 Cultivation, 18-002 Manufacturing, and 18-003 Distribution Uncle

Green. Meet all City Development Standards and State Building Code Requirements.

Meet all State Requirements, laws, and regulations for cannabis businesses in the State of

California. Construct curb, gutters, sidewalks, streetlights on Naranjo (SR-216) and Road

196 need to be installed to meet design standards established by the City.  All sidewalk

areas and parking shall have ADA access and meet the design standards established by

the City. Construction and install landscaping and irrigation in compliance with   City's

design standards.

5. 17-012 Platinum Gardens. Meet all City Development Standards and State Building

Code Requirements. Meet all State Requirements, laws, and regulations for cannabis

businesses in the State of California. Construct curb, gutters, sidewalks, streetlights on S.

Acacia Street need to be installed to meet design standards established by the City.  All

sidewalk areas and parking shall have ADA access and meet the design standards

established by the City. Construction and install landscaping and irrigation in compliance

with   City's design standards.

6. CUP 17-008 Manufacturing and CUP 17-009 Cultivation Top Crop.  Meet all City

Development Standards and State Building Code Requirements. Meet all State

Requirements, laws, and regulations for cannabis businesses in the State of California.

Construct curb, gutters, sidewalks, streetlights on S. Acacia Street need to be installed to
1



meet design standards established by the City.  All sidewalk areas and parking shall have 

ADA access and meet the design standards established by the City. Construction and 

install landscaping and irrigation in compliance with   City's design standards.  For the 

projects listed with conditions, the City would like to request the 2020 renewal to be valid 

for 6 months pending the final completion of the noted conditions. Once conditions have 

been completed the CUP will automatically be renewed for the duration for the 2020 

year.  

Additionally, The City is recommending an approval with the following condition: 

1. CUP 18-004 Buttonwillow. Complete street light installation to finalize Phase II,

automatically renewed for 2020 pending finalization.

PUBLIC COMMENT OPENED: 6:10 PM

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED 6:10 PM

ON A MOTION BY VARELA, SECOND BY NAVARRO IT WAS VOTED TO

ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AND RENEW THE NOTED CUP’S.  APPROVED

UNANIMOUSLY.

VI. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Information Items from Staff

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the Governing Board may meet 

in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. These sessions are not open to the public and may not be 

attended by members of the public.  The matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or 

are those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and arising after the 

posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session will be made in accordance with 

Government Code sections 54957.1 

“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, any public records which are 

subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session item on the regular meeting agenda shall be available at 

the following address at the time they are distributed to a majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, 

Woodlake, California 93286.  Public records distributed to the Council at a public meeting will be available to the 

public at such meeting if they were prepared by the City.   

Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 

VIII. ADJOURN

The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held on Wednesday, December 18, 2018 at 6:00 p.m. at 

City Council Chambers located at 145 N. Magnolia, Woodlake, CA 93286. 

Planning Commissioners: 

Chuck Mann - Chair 

Johnny Varela 

Xavier Bocanegra 

Michael Navarro 

Meeting adjourned at 6:40 PM 

Submitted by, 

Irene Zacarias 

Planning Commissioner Secretary 

2



City of Woodlake 

AGENDA ITEM V-A
December 18, 2019 

Prepared by Jason, Waters, City Staff 

SUBJECT:

Action: Adoption of Resolution: Recommending Approval of the Woodlake Reorganization Project 

to the Woodlake City Council– Public Hearing 

BACKGROUND 

The City intends to annex, amend the land use through a General Plan Amendment, and/or change 

the zone in five distinct areas, in and just north of the City of Woodlake. The City is also proposing a 

residential development within a portion of the site to be annexed for the construction of up to 90 

residential units. 

DISCUSSION: 

The City intends to annex, amend the land use through a General Plan Amendment (GPA), and/or 

change the zone in five distinct areas, as described below: 

Area A 

Area A consists of APN 057-060-028 and -029. The City intends to annex the 38-acre Area A into 

city limits, change the land use designation from “Agriculture” to “Low Density Residential”, give it 

a zone designation of R-1-10 and develop up to 90 single family units, as described in further detail 

under “Residential Development”. See Attachments 1, 2 and 4.   

Area B 

These parcels along Valencia Blvd. are within the city limits and are currently zoned R-1-7 with a 

land use designation of “Very Low Density Residential”. These parcels will be rezoned to RA and 

the land use will be changed to “Low Density Residential”. See Attachment 3. 

Area C 

These parcels are designated as “Very Low Density Residential”. These parcels will be annexed into 

the city limits, zoned as RA and re-designated as “Low Density Residential”.   

Area D 

This parcel (APN 061-010-015) is currently within the SOI and designated as “Neighborhood 

Commercial”. This parcel will be annexed and zoned as Neighborhood Commercial. The land use 

designation will not change.  

Area E 

APN 061-010-016 is within the city limits with a current land use designation of Neighborhood 

Commercial, which will remain. The site currently is zoned as R-1-7 and will be rezoned as 

Neighborhood Commercial to match the land use designation.   

3



Residential Development 

The City is proposing a residential development within Area A for the development of up to 90 

single-family residential units, as demonstrated in the conceptual site plan provided in Attachment 4. 

The development will hook up to City water and sewer and includes a stormwater basin to hold all 

storm drainage on-site.  

The project consists of three separate actions: 

General Plan Amendments 

The City is proposing to change the General Plan Land Use designations of Area A, Area B, and 

Area C. 

Area APNs Current Land Use Proposed Land Use 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-060-

029.

Agriculture Low Density 

Residential 

Area B 061-010-007, 061-010-

017, 061-010-005,

061-010-004, 061-010-

003, 061-010-002,

061-010-019, 061-010-

020

Very Low Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-010-

018, 061-010-010,

061-010-011, 061-010-

012, 061-010-013,

061-010-014

Very Low Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential 

Area D 061-010-015 Neighborhood 

Commercial 

Neighborhood 

Commercial (No 

Change) 

Area E 061-010-016 Neighborhood 

Commercial 

Neighborhood 

Commercial (No 

Change) 

Zoning Amendments 

The City is proposing to change the Zoning designations of Area A, Area B, Area C, Area D and 

Area E. 

Area APNs Current Zoning Proposed Zoning 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-060-

029.

AE- 20 (County) R-1-10

Area B 061-010-007, 061-010-

017, 061-010-005,

061-010-004, 061-010-

003, 061-010-002,

061-010-019, 061-010-

020

R-1-7 RA 

4



Area C 061-010-008, 061-010-

018, 061-010-010,

061-010-011, 061-010-

012, 061-010-013,

061-010-014

AE-20 (County) RA 

Area D 061-010-015 AE-20 (County) CN 

Area E 061-010-016 R-1-7 CN 

Annexations 

The City is proposing to Annex of Area A, Area C and Area D. 

Area APNs Current Jurisdiction Proposed Jurisdiction 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-060-

029.

Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area B 061-010-007, 061-010-

017, 061-010-005,

061-010-004, 061-010-

003, 061-010-002,

061-010-019, 061-010-

020

City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 

Change) 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-010-

018, 061-010-010,

061-010-011, 061-010-

012, 061-010-013,

061-010-014

Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area D 061-010-015 Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area E 061-010-016 City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 

Change) 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration was approved for the project and concluded that no significant 

environmental impacts will occur as a result of the Project. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Woodlake Planning Commission recommend approval of the Woodlake Reorganization 

Project to the Woodlake City Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Site Location Map

2. Project Area A Map

3. Project Area B,C,D and E Map

4. Conceptual Residential Site Plan

5. Woodlake Zoning Map

5



6. Woodlake Land Use Map

7. County Zoning Map

8. Resolution: Approve Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Woodlake Reorganization

Project

6



Woodlake Reorganization Project | Initial Study 

CITY OF WOODLAKE | Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 5 

 

Figure 1 – Location 

 

 

7



Woodlake Reorganization Project | Initial Study 

CITY OF WOODLAKE | Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 6 

Figure 2 – Project Area A 

8



Woodlake Reorganization Project | Initial Study 

CITY OF WOODLAKE | Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 7 

Figure 3 – Project Areas B, C, D and E 

9



Woodlake Reorganization Project | Initial Study 

CITY OF WOODLAKE | Crawford & Bowen Planning, Inc. 10 

Figure 4 – Conceptual Residential Site Plan 

10



Esri, HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community,  Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the
GIS User Community

City of Woodlake - Cajon Reorganization 

Legend
City Limits
Planned
Development- PD
Multifamily
Residential R-3
Multifamily
Residential R-2
Public Facilities - PF
Rural Residential -
RA
Single Family
Residential R-1-7
Single Family
Residential R-1-10

Urban Reserve - UR
Neighborhood
Commercial - CN

¯ 11



Esri, HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user community,  Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the
GIS User Community

City of Woodlake - Cajon Reorganization
Legend

Woodlake City Limits
Very Low Density Residential
Low Density Residential

Urban Reserve
Public Facilities
Neighborhood Commercial

Medium Density Residential
High Density Residential
Agriculture ±

12



TULARE COUNTY ZONING MAP 

13



    

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the matter of: 

 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE  ) 

WOODLAKE REORGANIZATION PROJECT )  Resolution No. 19- 

TO THE WOODLAKE CITY COUNCIL  ) 

 

Commissioner, offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. That the Woodlake 

Planning Commission recommends the approval of the Woodlake Reorganization Project to the 

Woodlake City Council. 

 

WHEREAS, the project consists of the following: 

 

General Plan Amendments 

 

The City is proposing to change the General Plan Land Use designations of Area A, Area B, and 

Area C. 

 

Area APNs Current Land Use Proposed Land Use 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029. 

Agriculture Low Density 

Residential 

Area B 061-010-007, 061-

010-017, 061-010-

005, 061-010-004, 

061-010-003, 061-

010-002, 061-010-

019, 061-010-020 

Very Low Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-

010-018, 061-010-

010, 061-010-011, 

061-010-012, 061-

010-013, 061-010-

014 

Very Low Density 

Residential 

Low Density 

Residential 

Area D 061-010-015 Neighborhood 

Commercial 

Neighborhood 

Commercial (No 

Change) 

Area E 061-010-016 Neighborhood 

Commercial 

Neighborhood 

Commercial (No 

Change) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



Zoning Amendments 

The City is proposing to change the Zoning designations of Area A, Area B, Area C, Area D and 

Area E. 

Area APNs Current Zoning Proposed Zoning 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029.

AE- 20 (County) R-1-10

Area B 061-010-007, 061-

010-017, 061-010-

005, 061-010-004,

061-010-003, 061-

010-002, 061-010-

019, 061-010-020

R-1-7 RA 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-

010-018, 061-010-

010, 061-010-011,

061-010-012, 061-

010-013, 061-010-014

AE-20 (County) RA 

Area D 061-010-015 AE-20 (County) CN 

Area E 061-010-016 R-1-7 CN 

Annexations 

The City is proposing to Annex of Area A, Area C and Area D. 

Area APNs Current Jurisdiction Proposed Jurisdiction 

Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029.

Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area B 061-010-007, 061-

010-017, 061-010-

005, 061-010-004,

061-010-003, 061-

010-002, 061-010-

019, 061-010-020

City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 

Change) 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-

010-018, 061-010-

010, 061-010-011,

061-010-012, 061-

010-013, 061-010-014

Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area D 061-010-015 Tulare County City of Woodlake 

Area E 061-010-016 City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 

Change) 

15



WHEREAS, a public meeting notice was published in the Foothill Sun Gazette prior to the 

meeting and neighboring properties were notified consistent with the Woodlake Municipal Code; 

and 

WHEREAS, the project has an approved Mitigated Negative Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public meeting on this matter, reviewed the staff 

report prepared on this proposed project and considered public input regarding the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodlake Planning Commission hereby 

recommends the approval of the Woodlake Reorganization Project to the Woodlake City 

Council. 

The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Commissioner , second by 

Commissioner , at a regular meeting of the Woodlake Planning Commission on the 18th day of 

December 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

16




